
Question Answer

Does the city have a ballpark budget in mind for this project?

We do not have a set budget in mind, we expect proposers to submit the budget they need. We do not 

expect that there will be any type of physical due diligence or work on the site. This is a modeling analysis 

and project, not one for which we are expecting renderings or site plans to the extent any of you would 

need to engage a firm to do density analysis, etc. We will expect you to take the information that exists 

and provide some assumptions and modeling based on that.

Is the City expecting the chosen vendor to provide a report that will be on the 

selected Vendor’s letterhead using the Vendor’s branding?
Yes.

What is the budget the city has set aside for this particular project?

We do not have a set budget in mind, we expect proposers to submit the budget they need. We do not 

expect that there will be any type of physical due diligence or work on the site. This is a modeling analysis 

and project, not one for which we are expecting renderings or site plans to the extent any of you would 

need to engage a firm to do density analysis, etc. We will expect you to take the information that exists 

and provide some assumptions and modeling based on that.

For the current economic impact of BKL:

a. Does the City have data they can share with the selected consultant on direct 

employment at the airport?

b. Can they share data related to airport traffic?

c. Can they include information around events that are held in a typical year at 

the airport, including where attendees are coming from and attendance at 

events?

d. Do they have data around fees and taxes generated for the city from the 

airport that they can share with the consultant?

a. Yes.

b. Yes.

c. Information about events can be shared, but data regarding attendees is not collected.

d. Available financial data can be shared with the consultant.

For the economic impact potential of BKL:

a. Are they planning to provide specific alternative land use scenarios or 

parameters?

b. How many scenarios would they like and are you looking for high-level uses 

with associated high-level economic impacts or detailed scenarios? From the 

RFP it seems like they want high-level estimates based on a range of uses

c. Is the City interested in economic impact measures only (i.e. employment, 

income, GDP) or also tax revenue generated for the city?

a.  We would expect the consultant to generate the ideas for scnearious and paramaters, and vet them 

with the City.

b. We are looking for a range of impacts and will be flexible with the number of scenarious - we would 

work this out with the consultant. 

c. Both.

Has engineering work been completed on the site to determine what sorts of 

structures and sizing of various developments the site could accommodate or is 

the consultant supposed to determine this?

We will share the work we have and expect you to make assumptions based on this, but it's not a study 

where we expect you to get into detail. We'd like for you to make assumptions based on the information 

we currently have and that we will share with the consultants.

Does the city have any ideas as to what specific development uses they would 

like analyzed if the airport is closed and then developed to maximum density?

We don't have specific ideas. We would be looking to our consultants to assess the market in Cleveland 

and similar lakefront development in other cities in terms of uses and help us come up with scenarios. To 

reiterate: this is not master planning. This is an exercise to help us gain a range of potential economic 

outcomes to help make a deciison.

Are the page requirements listed in the services proposal section ie. “Capacity to 

Perform Work (1 page) meant to be suggestions or are they mandatory?
They are suggestions, but please try to stick with the approximate page number requests

Which City department is leading this project?  Department of Port  Control?    

Department of Economic Development?  Other?

Integrated Development (which includes Economic Development, Planning, Community Development, 

and Building and Housing) is leading this effort. Department of Economic Development, Department of 

Planning, and Department of Port Control will be engaged in the process.

Is the existing Exhibit A available now?  When might the airport master plan 

update be completed?

The airport master plan is scheduled to be completed in Q2 2023. Therefore, it likely will not be available 

for this study.

Do you envision a public outreach program? No.

Do you want the impact analysis focused on the city or county? Focus should be on the City, but we are open to county impacts, particularly in terms of sales tax.

Speak to what's expected around the analysis related to the as-is scenario (the 

airport remaining open). Is the charge to look at the airport as is today, or are 

you looking to the consultant to look at future potential to changes to the aiport 

and consequential economic impact.  

The only analysis we are looking for out of the current airport is what is the positive economic impact of 

the current airport that would be lost if we closed it, as a way of evaluating the overall potential economic 

impact to inform our decision-making. We are really focused on the range of potential economic impacts 

for adaptive re-use not as an airport.

Are we to look at uses for land areas available on the airport site should the 

airport remain open as shown on the ongoing airport master plan update?

No. We are not looking for analysis of scenarios in which the airport remains open.

Have any previous studies been conducted on the airport and will those be 

made available (if relevant)?

Whatever we have available we will share it with the consultant. There's a very old study that was done I 

think by Cleveland State or Case Western. It's about 20 years old. That's the only study that we are aware 

of.

Can you clarify that the primary runway, that if it's indeed in need of runway 

rehab and that associated cost, that is not to be factored in?
Correct.

Can you confirm the time period to complete the study and is it a hard deadline?

In the RFP, we are asking the consultant to give a final analysis no later than April 28, 2023. Assuming that 

the RFP process goes well, that will give the consultant mid-January through the end of April. However, we 

made our best assumption about what a reasonable timeline would be for this. If you believe your process 

and timeline doesn't align with that, let us know in your proposal why and what timeline that would be. As 

far as the City's perspective, there is no drop-dead date at which if we don't get this , somethign terrible is 

going to happen. We are just trying to get the analysis in place so we can be in a position to make a 

decision next year.
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Just to confirm, if the ongoing airport master plan recommends improvements, 

we are not to consider the incremental impact of the airport??

Correct.

How would the City advise firms respond to the requirements of the 

Professional Services Fee Proposal if audited overhead rates are not available? 

Given our firm structure and typical consulting engagements, it has been 

customary billing practice to utilize fully loaded billing rates inclusive of all 

overhead charges. Public agencies have accepted our firm’s fully loaded rates 

for similar engagements, and we would appreciate clarification if any exceptions 

can be made to these pricing requirements and if any alternative pricing 

documentation may be provided as alternative to audited rates.

Other pricing documentation may be provided as an alternative to audited rates. 

Can you please clarify what the City is seeking in the References section? Are 

you requesting contact information for client references or completed reference 

letters?

If the prospective Consultant is easily able to access letters of reference regarding previous work your 

organization has done and why they are uniquely suited for this project, please provide those. Otherwise, 

it is acceptable to provide names and contact information of firms/individuals who are willing and able to 

speak to this should we contact them in the finalist stage.

In addition to the City of Cleveland, what other organizations (other third-party 

consultants) would we be working with during this project?

None.

During the engagement, will the following assumptions be provided by the City 

of Cleveland or expected to be provided by the selected vendor? a. 

Programming (i.e., square feet and property use (residential, retail, office, etc.) 

b. Construction Costs c. Development Schedule

No – range of potential ideas / assumptions to be provided by vendor and approved by the City.

When is the updated Burke Lakefront Airport (BKL) Master Plan expected to be 

complete/published? 
The BKL Exhibit A & Airport Layout Plan Update is expected to be completed Q2 2023.

When is the Cleveland North Coast Lakefront Development Master Plan 

expected to be complete/published? 
By YE 2023

Should terms and conditions be proposed as part of this proposal? If so, does 

the City of Cleveland have a standard contract form or should the vendor 

provide one in their own format?

No, terms and conditions will be negotiated with the prospective vendor at a later stage. 


